
Excerpted from Black Dahlia Avenger III (Rare Bird Books Nov. 2018) 

Chapter 6- Tamar Nais Hodel (1935-2015) -pages 137-143 

… 

Here, again in her own words, unabridged, is the overview of her life she 

sent to me, along with a second follow-up email with the names of the people 

and acquaintances that played a role, large or small, in her amazing life.
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Tamar’s second email contained the long list of names. 

From: “Tamar” 

To: Steve Hodel 

Sent: January 12, 2004 

Subject: PARTIAL LIST OF CHARACTERS SO FAR (AS I THINK OF THEM) 

(Tamar in her email inadvertently repeated several names) 

Robinson Jeffers Fauna 

Eleanor Roosevelt Mexico City 

Paul Robeson Jose Guttierez 

Marion Anderson William Byers 

The Ballet Theatre John Wilson 

The Ballet Russe Vernon 

Leonide Massine Michelle and Russell Gilliam (Phillips) 

Alexander Danilov Gil Gilliam 

Alexander Oumansky Frida Kahlo 

Dr. George Hill Hodel Diego Rivera 

John Huston Elizabeth Catlett 

Dorero Apollo Theatre 

Man Ray Josh White 

Fred Sexton Dizzy Gillespie 

Kiyo Duke Ellington 

Tim Holt The Theresa Hotel 

Jerry Giesler John D. Thomas 

LA Confidential Harlem 

SF District Attorney 

Hot Lips Page Cosmo Alley 

Mexico City Paul Mazursky 

San Francisco Leon Bibb 

Los Angeles Michelle Gilliam Phillips (again) 

Dr. Charles White and Kelly 

Joe Adams John Hawker 

Billy Ekstine Gogi Grant 

June Ekstine Ketty Lester 

Trini Lopez Kitty White 

Faith Petric Craig The Renaissance (LA)
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Billy Daniels Dick Gregory 

Hungry I Langston Hughes 

Stan Wilson Scott McKenzie 

Deborah Elizabeth Wilson The Journeymen 

Enrico Banducci John Phillips 

Mort Sahl The Church Catolico 

Maya Angelou (St. Peters and Pauls) 

Tommy and Dick Smothers Father John Hester 

Phyliss Diller The Mamas and the Papas 

Harry Belafonte George Harrison 

Earth Kitt Dr. Paul Fleiss 

Professor Irwin Corey Warren Beatty 

Frank Werber Wendy 

Harry Smith Tex Watson 

The Gateway Singers The Rathskellar 

The Limelighters Harvey Ragsdale 

The Purple Onion The Kingston Trio 

Billy Holiday Theodore Bikel 

Honolulu Skip Weshner 

Tempest Storm Susan Oliver 

Lenny Bruce and Honey Steve McQueen 

The Clouds Sally Kellerman 

Doris Duke The Lamplighter 

Liberace Les McCann 

Peggy Lee Gene McDaniels 

Tom Moffatt 

 

So Many Secrets 

Tamar’s list of names included her short-lived marriage as a teenager to 

William Byers, in Mexico, which she had informed me, was “to get away 

from her mother.” A cursory check of Byers’ name revealed a Jet Magazine 

article from March 1953, which documents a despondent Tamar had 

attempted suicide by pills. 

True to the times, the married couple are described as “her Negro 

husband” and Tamar as “a twenty-three-year-old White student.”
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